
__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – October 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

 
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  

REGULAR SESSION 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 

Monday, October 21, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally considered 

in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate consideration upon 
request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 10/07/2013 Council meeting 

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may be 
recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration form” 
on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  You are not required to give 
your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  Presentations are 
limited to five minutes.)   

 
6. PRESENTATION: 
 Swearing in of Reserve Police Officer Todd Duncan 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Consider waiving fees for Holiday Jingle and Elephant Garlic Festival. 
B. Consider waiving fees for the use of Jessie Mays Community Hall by the North 

Plains Community Garden Club. 
C. Consider waiving fees for the use of Jessie Mays for the North Plains Senior Center 

Crab Feed fundraiser on January 18, 2014. 
D. Discussion of street naming policy in new developments and with renaming of 

streets 
E. Approval of Resolution No. 1803 Suspending Charges for Fee In Lieu of 

Construction of Street Improvements 
F. Discussion and decision of specific draft City Policies 
G. Review of September Check Register 

 
 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 32



__________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – October 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B.  None Scheduled. 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the City Manager, Public Works Director, Police Chief, 

and Library Director 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended this past month and other items. 

 
B. November 2013 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 October 26: North Plains Pumpkin Fun Run on Saturday, at the North Plains Senior 

Center and Jessie Mays Community Hall.  (See NPFun.org for details) 
 November 11: Veteran’s Day—City Offices and Library Closed 
 November 16: North Plains Senior Center Holiday Bazaar at the Senior Center: 

9:00-3:00  
 November 28 & 29: Thanksgiving Holiday—City Offices and Library Closed 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, if 
requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall at 
(503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

During the month of November the City Council Meetings will be held at Jessie Mays 
Community Hall while the North Plains Senior Center completes their kitchen remodel. They will 
be held at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street, North Plains, Oregon, on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

 
Monday, November 4, 2013 Monday, November 18, 2013 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 32



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  

Monday, October 7, 2013  
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: Glen 

Warren, Michael Demagalski, Charlynn Newton, and Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
Excused: Councilor Broome 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles, Library Director Debbie Brodie, Finance Director Rachael 
Lembo, Deputy City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 09/16/2013 Council meeting 

Motion by Lenahan. Seconded by Demagalski to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
Hatcher made an announcement that he is making some changes in how he will run the 
council meetings. In the past he has been rather free in letting conversations happen, but he 
now wants people to wait to speak until they have been recognized. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Margaret Reh, President of the Friends of the North Plains Public Library invited the Council to 
the One Book One Community Program Preview scheduled for Saturday, October 12 at 6:30 
at the library.  This is an introduction to the book, Running the Rift by Naomi Benaron which 
will be featured in all the One Book One Community events throughout the month of February. 
Free copies of the book will be available to those who attend the event on Saturday. The One 
Book One Community Kick-off will be held on Saturday, February 1st at the North Plains Public 
Library. 
 
6. PRESENTATION: 

A. Presentation of proceeds from benefit dance to Ruby Brackin of the North Plains 
Food Pantry. 

 
Councilor Broome had organized the County Music Swing and Sway fundraiser that was held 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 32



on September 21, 2013.  That event raised $704.75 for the North Plains Food Bank which 
operates under the North Plains Senior Center.  Mayor Hatcher presented a check for $704.75 
to Ruby Brackin who was representing Loaves and Fishes. 
 
Lenahan asked Brackin to give a brief report on the Food Bank.  Brackin stated that about 32 
families are taking advantage of this program.  They enjoy the shopping style of the set up in 
the yellow house.  She is a little concerned about people having to wait outside until their turn 
during the winter months. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 1801 Supporting Passage of Hillsboro School District 
General Obligation Bond 

 
Hatcher stated that Council talked about this at the last meeting. Motion by Lenahan. 
Seconded by Demagalski to adopt Resolution No. 1801 supporting the passage of Hillsboro 
School District General Obligation Bond. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 1802 Appointment of Anapreet Kaur Gill to the North 
Plains Public Library Board of Directors 

 
Hatcher stated a recommendation had been forwarded from the Library Board to appoint 
Anapreet Kaur Gill to the North Plains Public Library Board of Directors. Lenahan commented 
that she was very glad to see Ana getting involved with the Library—they are a good group of 
people.  Motion by Demagalski. Second by Warren to approve Resolution No. 1802. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Discussion of Acquisition of Cameras with a CIS grant 
 
Chief Snyder presented the staff report. The North Plains Police Department has been 
exploring options for the purchase of cameras that can passively monitor high traffic areas, 
and provide data about problem crime areas.  The locations the Department is considering 
monitoring include Commercial Street and Glencoe Road. Snyder is seeking direction from the 
Council if he should proceed in applying for a grant that would cover the purchasing and 
installation costs of these cameras.  Discussion ensued regarding the quality of cameras that 
would be purchased, location of the placement of the cameras, and the purposes these 
cameras would be used for. Some council members expressed a concern about monitoring in 
“the big brother” sense.  Consensus of the Council was for Snyder to proceed with applying for 
the grant through CIS to obtain security cameras.  
 

D. Discussion of property acquisition for Water Tank Site 
 
DeBry presented the staff report.  DeBry is asking for direction from the Council regarding the 
purchase of property for a future water tank site.  There are three properties that are currently 
available for purchase.  DeBry wanted to get a sense of comfort level the Council has with the 
different financing options.  A second water tower is important in the event of an emergency 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 4 of 32



and we would want something in place on the other side of Glencoe Road. This has more 
importance as North Plains will have more housing on the east side. Discussion ensued and 
included: possible relocation of Public Works; development of a future recreation center; city 
hall expansion—including library; various means of funding the purchase and still be able to 
fund additional infrastructure projects; linking east side of city to west side of city. Different 
means of funding are available depending on the intended purpose for the property. This is not 
something that has to be acted on in the immediate future, but now is the time to be looking at 
options available.  DeBry was instructed by Council to bring this discussion back at the next 
Council meeting with more information. 
 

E. Discussion of fireworks show for July 4, 2014 
 
DeBry presented the staff report.  Staff is seeking direction from Council regarding pursuing a 
fireworks show at the end of our third annual Fourth of July Celebration.  A decision needs to 
be made regarding reserving the date for fireworks.  If a show is reserved, Council can cancel 
the show up until March when the signed contract and deposit are due.  Discussion ensued.  
Consensus of Council was to reserve a spot for the fireworks display.  Staff was directed to 
pursue sponsorships from individuals, organizations and businesses.  Then depending on the 
amount of funding received Council will decide if we have a fireworks display in 2014. 
 

F. Discussion of the hiring of an Event Organizer for 4th of July 
 
DeBry presented the staff report.  Staff is proposing that the role of the Event Organizer be 
assigned formally to one person or firm to ensure that adequate time is spent on the planning 
process. More volunteers will be incorporated into the planning process.  Hiring a person or 
firm to act as an organizer would reduce the amount of staff time invested in the event and 
promote more community involvement.  The cost for an organizer is proposed to be between 
$4,500 - $6,000.  If the organizer is successful in soliciting sponsorships there could be 
adequate revenue to fund the expense.  The event this past year absorbed much of the Public 
Works Director’s time and energy along with other staff members.  By hiring an Event 
Organizer we will still be allocating resources, just differently. This will free up staff to do their 
other job assignments.  Discussion ensued. The consensus of the Council was for staff to 
pursue hiring an Event Organizer for the Fourth of July event. 
 

G. Acceptance of Employee Handbook date 10/1/13 
 
Staff provided Council with a copy of the newly revised Employee Handbook. The City 
maintains an employee handbook to assist new hires and employees with understanding the 
employment process, policies, wages and benefits.  This document contains only summary 
information.  More detailed information is available in the source documents such as the 
explanations of benefits and budget.   
 

H. Discuss progress Councilors are making on reviewing draft City Policies received at 
9/16/13 Council Meeting. 

 
The Council received copies of the draft City Policies at the 9/16/13 Council meeting. They are 
working their way through the document.  They will begin approving the policies systematically 
throughout the next few council meetings. 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 5 of 32



 
I. Discussion of street naming with new development. 

 
This topic was tabled until the 10/21/13 meeting. 
 

J. Discuss FY2013-14 through September 2013 
 
Finance Director Rachael Lembo presented the fiscal year documents through September to 
Council for review.  The reports are available on-line in the Council packet information.  This 
item was informational only. 
 

K. Discuss excess crime coverage 
 
Lembo explained that crime coverage is insurance against employee theft, fraud, and robbery.  
It is important for the Council to review this insurance policy periodically and consider how 
much risk the City is comfortable with as well as cost of higher coverage.  Council directed 
staff to leave the coverage at $250,000. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. None Scheduled 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  
 FIRST READING:   

A. None Scheduled. 
 

SECOND READING: 
B. None Scheduled 

 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
City Manager DeBry reported the Sunset Ridge application was received for the east 
expansion area. The number of small lots planned have increased significantly. Staff will keep 
the public aware of the plans and progress through the newsletter and the city website. 
 
Boyles and DeBry stated they are looking into adding street lights to the industrial area of 
town.  They are also considering doing some outreach to various neighborhoods to find out 
who may be interested in having street lights installed. Council was concerned about how 
these will be paid for.  The cost is $7.00 per light per month.  DeBry stated they are just 
investigating this matter at this time. 
 
Public Works Director Boyles reported on the Glencoe Road interchange.  ODOT is close to 
being finished with what they are going to do this fall.  Next April the final lift will be added to 
the street. He also reported that he met with ODOT regarding the walking trail and options with 
the alignment. 
 
The final lift of concrete was laid down last Friday on the Claxtar Street project. For the most 
part, the residents are happy with the results.  Hatcher stated he has heard some concerns 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 6 of 32



from residents who stated they lost seven feet from their yard and now have an eight inch 
incline.  Boyles stated that the right-of-way has not changed on anyone’s property.  
 
Chief Snyder reported that the North Plains Police department is facilitating a Hood to Coast 
team that will participate in the 2014 Hood to Coast Run.  This Run raises money for 
Providence cancer research. 
 
Library Director Brodie reiterated that a new art exhibit is now on display at the library.  This art 
exhibit follows the theme of the One Book One Community book choice of Running the Rift by 
Naomi Benaron. 
 
The library has decided to disband craft night.  The crafters will continue to create items on 
their own that will be sold at the December Craft sale fundraiser. 
 
Staff applied for and received a grant with the State of Oregon to assist in the education of 
Oregonians with the new Cover Oregon health plan.  Margaret Wold of the North Plains Senior 
Center stated that they will be providing information about Cover Oregon at the Senior Center 
also. 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Mayor Report: 
Hatcher reported he attended the joint library board meetings of the North Plains Public Library 
and the Banks Public library.  It was a very informative meeting. 
 
Hatcher polled the Council on their opinion on continuing to have council meetings at the North 
Plains Senior Center.  He stated that initially it was going to be temporary.  Consensus was to 
continue meeting at the Senior Center. The main concern of the Council was that it is more 
work for the Senior Center staff. Margaret Wold assured Council it was fine with them. 
 
Wold did state that Council will not be able to meet at the Center during November as they will 
be in the middle of their kitchen remodel. 
 
Council Reports: 
Warren reported the conversations he has had with the senior pastor at Evergreen Christian 
Center regarding the skate park equipment have been promising. They are willing to pay for 
the equipment. An agreed upon price has not been reached quite yet. 
 
Newton reported on the League of Oregon Cities conference that she just attended. She came 
away with lots of new ideas for council and the community. She learned many things that 
would be beneficial to all of the Council as leaders of the community. 
 
Lenahan reported she attended the first Parks Board meeting in September. They will be 
conducting a survey at the Chili Cook-off regarding the feasibility of a dog park. 
 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 One Book One Community Program Preview and Art Exhibit: Saturday, October 12, 
2013 from 6:30 – 8:00 p.m. at the North Plains Public Library. 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 7 of 32



 Chili Cook-Off, Thursday, October 17 at 6:00 in the Jessie Mays Community Hall 
 Benefit Dance: Harvest Hoedown, Saturday, October 19, 2013 from 7:00 p.m. to 

11:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 Pumpkin Run and Costume Parade, Saturday, October 26, 2013 from 7:00 a.m. with 

the pumpkin pancake breakfast at the Senior Center then events throughout the day 
at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 

 Halloween Treats at the library on Thursday, October 31, 2013 starting at 11:00 a.m. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 9:48 p.m. 
 

 
 
_______________________________   
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved __________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy Recorder 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 8 of 32



 

Agenda Item. 8A  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 14, 2013 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for the North Plains 

Holiday Jingle and 2014 Elephant Garlic Festival 

 
Request:   Council waive rental and cleaning fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Events Association on December 5, 2013 
and the rental, cleaning and OLCC fees for the Elephant Garlic Festival August 
8-10, 2014. 
 
Background:  The North Plains Events Association consists of community 
members interested in raising funds for community events and other civic 
activities.  Principals in the Events Association include Patti Burns, Stewart King, 
Russ Sheldon, Sherrie Simmons, as well as Mayor David Hatcher and Councilor 
Teri Lenahan. 
 
The Events Association intends to host the 2013 Jingle on December 5th.  As in 
past years, Ms. Burns will assist with the organization of parade, while the City 
assists with the creation of the route, street closures and leading the parade.  
Once the parade has ended participants can enjoy cookies, cider and hot 
chocolate donated by Loch Lolly Christmas Forest.  Admission to the event is 
free, and it raises no revenues. 
 
Additionally the Events Association would like to carry on the tradition of hosting 
the 2014 Elephant Garlic Festival at Jessie Mays Community Park.  Admission to 
the event is free.  The Events Association will raise funds through rental of 
vendor spaces, t-shirts sales and corporate sponsorships.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  For the Jingle, the City would be waiving approximately $140 in 
rental fees and a $100 cleaning fee.   
 
For the Garlic Festival the City does not have a rate set for the rental of the entire 
Jessie Mays Community Park.  The value of renting the Hall for four days is 
estimated at $1,120 with a cleaning fee of $100.  The OLCC temporary permit 
fee is $12 and has been typically waived for the operators of the beer and wine 
garden.   
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees.  

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 9 of 32



 

Agenda Item No: 8B    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 10, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for use by the North Plains 
Community Garden Club 

 
Request:   Council waive rental and cleaning fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Community Garden Club (Garden Club) for their 
monthly meetings and Plant sale on May 3, 2014. 
 
Background:  The Garden Club meets monthly at Jessie Mays on the second 
Tuesday.  Traditionally the City has waived the fees for using facility. 
 
The Garden Club is a non-profit organization that assists the City with the set up and 
maintenance of flower pots on Main and Commercial Streets, and maintains the wall at 
Commercial and Glencoe.   
 
A major fundraiser for the Club is annual plant sale which is proposed to be hosted at 
the tennis court at Jessie Mays Community Park on May 3, 2014.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  The estimated rental fees for monthly meetings is $84.  A cleaning fee 
is not applicable if the rental fee is waived. 
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees for the North Plains Community 
Garden Club to meet at Jessie Mays and host the 2014 Plant sale. 
 

 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 10 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 11 of 32



 

Agenda Item. 8C  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 14, 2013 
To: City Council 
From: City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for North Plains Senior 

Center Crab Feed fundraiser being held on Saturday, January 18, 2014 

 
Request:   Council waive rental, cleaning and OLCC fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Senior Center on January 18, 2014. 
 
Background:  An annual crab feed fund raiser is scheduled for Saturday, January 
18, 2014.  This event provides funding to the North Plains Senior Center. Some 
years the event has involved the service of alcohol, which requires an administrative 
approval by the City of North Plains. 
 
In the past the City has waived all fees related to the event in support of the 
fundraiser. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The City would be waiving approximately $392 in fees.  Rental of 
the hall would typically generate $280 for 8 hours.  The cleaning fee is $100.  The 
OLCC temporary permit fee is $12.   
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees. 
 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 12 of 32



 

Agenda Item No: 8D    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 10, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of street naming policy 

Request:  Council discuss policy for street naming. 
 
Background:   The City’s ordinances provide little guidance regarding the naming of 
streets.  In the past developers could select names that would be adopted by the City 
when improvements were dedicated.   
 
When the Public Works Guidelines were revised last year it included a requirement that 
the City Council approve names of streets. 
 
The City is likely to approve the names of some new streets within the coming months.  
For example the proposed names within the sunset Ridge Subdivision are: 
Nestor, Virgil, Helena, Cressida, Demetrius, Gloria, Lysander, Rowe, and Turney.  
(Most of these are combination of classic mythical names.)  
 
It is common for subdivisions to have a common thread with their names.  For example 
trees, colleges, or flowers are often associated with certain neighborhoods.  North 
Plains’ maps still reflect the names given to streets with the original plat developed in 
1911. 
 
Staff is asking Council for guidance on the selection of names.  A draft policy is 
attached that promotes using the names of families historically linked to North Plains, 
former Mayors and parade grand marshals.   
 
The policy also provides guidance on the renaming of existing streets if that is 
requested in the future.  Staff is not aware of any such requests. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   Adopting the policy has no fiscal impact.   
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  No motion needed, for information only.  
 
Attachment: Policy 
 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 13 of 32



City of North Plains Policy 

Number: 150 Title: Street Naming  

Date: 09/01/13 Signed: ______________________________ 

 
Purpose 
Policy outlines process for selecting street names in the City of North Plains. 
 
Policy 
All new streets, including private streets, created by a subdivision or partitioning process 
will be designated and approved by the City of North Plains in accordance with the 
standards of this policy and shall become effective on recording of a final plat. 
 
Any new street not created by a subdivision or major partition and created by a public 
dedication may be named by the deed of dedication subsequent to the approval of the 
City Council at a public meeting, and will become effective upon recording of the deed 
of dedication.  
 
Privately owned streets, not designated as right of way, are subject to the same street 
name standards as are public streets, except that they are not required to be approved 
by Council.   All private street signs will be provided at the owner(s) expense and 
addresses will be assigned by the City. 
 
Naming 
All streets named or renamed will comply with the following criteria: 
 
 Collector streets, local roads and highways (arterials) shall maintain a common 

name or number for the entire alignment inside the corporate limits of North Plains. 
 
 Whenever practicable, historical family names, names of former Mayors, and parade 

grand marshal will be utilized or retained and be subject to the considerations as 
outlined below. 

 
 Hyphenated, multiple words, or other exceptionally long names requiring more than 

25 characters will be avoided. 
 
 No street will be given a name that is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the 

same as, any other street within the jurisdiction of the City of North Plains unless 
that street is an extension of an already-named street. 

 
 Consideration will be given to the continuation of the name of a street in another 

jurisdiction when it is extended into the City of North Plains. 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 14 of 32



 
 Names that are difficult to pronounce or spell will be avoided. 
 
 Abbreviated street names will not be allowed. 
 
 Priority shall be given to names listed in the Street Name Pool as described below. 
 
All proposed street names will be reviewed, prior to use, by the City staff to determine 
whether the proposed street names comply with the standards and classifications set 
forth in this policy. 
 
Classifications 
The following classifications (suffixes) will be utilized in the assignment of new street 
names: 
 

Road: major north/south street providing through traffic movement across the 
community; 
 
Boulevard: major east/west street providing through traffic movement across the 
community; 
 
Avenue: continuous, north/south thoroughfare or extension thereof; 
 
Street: continuous east/west thoroughfare or extension thereof; 
 
Lane: short east/west street under one thousand feet in length; 
 
Terrace: short north/south street under one thousand feet in length; 
 
Drive: curvilinear thoroughfare (less than one hundred eighty degrees) at least one 
thousand feet in length; 
 
Court: east/west cul-de-sac;  
 
Place: north/south cul-de-sac; 
 
Way: loop street (exceeding one hundred eighty degrees);  
 
Parkway: a broad landscaped thoroughfare. 
The City Council may grant an exception to the street name standards specified 
under on a case-by-case basis and subsequent to accepting public comment. 

 
Street Name Pool 
Whenever practicable, historical family names will be considered in the naming or 
renaming of public or private streets.    Factors to be considered will include, but are not 
limited to the following: 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 15 of 32



 
 Original holders of donation land claims in the City of North Plains or Washington 

County; 
 
 Early homesteaders or settlers of the City of North Plains or Washington County; 
 
 Heirs of original settlers or long-time (minimum 50 years) residents of the City of 

North Plains or Washington County; 
 
 Explorers of, or having to do with, the City of North Plains or Washington County; 
 
 Native American tribes indigenous to the City of North Plains or Washington 

County;  
 
 Early  leaders  and  pioneers  of  eminence  of  the  City  of  North Plains  or 

Washington County. 
 
The City Council shall adopt a "Street Name Pool" by Resolution, and the City staff 
shall maintain the Street Name Pool containing an acceptable list of street names 
based on the historical factors shown above.  Names listed in the Street Name Pool 
shall be given priority for assigning names to new streets or the renaming of 
streets. 
  

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 16 of 32



Street Name Pool October 2013 
 
Historical Family Names 

Bunger Jacky Murphy 
Carver James Ould 
Christener Jossy Provis 
Clark Keenon Reese 
Conklin Kelly Sadden 
Cropp King Schoenberg 
Cypher Lewis Shaddon 
Davis Lincoln Theis 
Dobbibs Loftis Troutman 
Fields   
Flemmons   
Haudegard Martin VanDehey 
Hill Mays VanDomelen 
Hollenbeck McCuen Volpp 
Hunter Miller Walter 
Ireland   

 
Mayors 
Drexel James Olson 
Frace Kent Riley 
Hatcher Kindel Sandford 

Hirst MacLeod Theis 
  Vanderzanden 

 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 17 of 32



 

Agenda Item No: 8E     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 15, 2013, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 1804 permanently suspending the Street Fee 
in Lieu 

Request:  Council approve Resolution No. 1804 permanently suspending charges for 
Fee in Lieu of construction of street improvements. 
 
Background:   On April 15, 2013 Council approved Resolution No. 1783 suspending 
the Street Fee in Lieu through October 15, 2013.  Subsequently Council discussed the 
Street Fee in Lieu on September 3, 2013.   

During the six month suspension the City has experienced an increase in requests for 
infill building permits for residences.  Only one commercial building permit has been 
issued with the waiver.  Staff has been discussing the waiver with businesses as a 
means of encouraging expansion and remodeling.  Generally, discussion of the fee 
waiver is well received by the public and business owners.   

Staff is recommending the suspension of the fee on a permanent basis as it has not 
fulfilled its original purpose of ensuring the improvement of public streets.  This change 
will shift the burden of improvements to the property owners as development occurs.  
The City’s code still requires the completion of frontage improvements including 
sidewalks and street improvements.  This change will enable the owner to either 
execute the changes during construction or enter into an agreement with the City for 
completion at a later date (most likely resulting in a lien against the property.)   

Fiscal Impact:   Suspension of the fee may reduce the cost of development in the City 
for remodels and new buildings.  The City will receive less revenues for street 
improvements.  However since the City has not spent the bulk of the Street Fees in Lieu 
to date, the absence of revenue is unlikely to have a material effect on capital 
improvements.  
 
The City has not yet determined a use for the funds collected to date. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this fee. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to approve Resolution No.1804. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution No. 1804 ___________________________________ 

City Council Packet 
Monday, October 21, 2013 

Page 18 of 32



RESOLUTION NO. 1804 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, PERMANENTLY SUSPENDING CHARGES FOR FEE IN LIEU OF 

CONSTRUCTION OF STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of North Plains Zoning and Development Code requires public 
improvements under certain circumstances in conjunction with private property 
improvement; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City established a fee for funding future public improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the fee disproportionately impacted small projects proposed by 
residents and businesses, which discouraged redevelopment and expansion of 
businesses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council suspended this Street Fee In Lieu by resolution on April 15, 
2013 for six months and directed staff to evaluate the effectiveness of the fee and the 
impact on in-fill development; and  
 
 WHEREAS, during the six month suspension the City has experienced an increase 
in requests for infill building permits for residences; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined the fee is not successfully funding 
public improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this change will shift the burden of improvements to the property 
owners as development occurs;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, permanently suspends the Fee in Lieu of 
construction of street improvements. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of October, 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 19 of 32



 

Agenda Item No: 8F    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 14, 2013 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion on draft city policies 

Request:  Council to discuss their progress of reviewing the draft city policies 
distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting. 
 
Background:   The draft policy manual was distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting.  
Council was asked to review this packet of material for approval at the 10/21/13 
meeting.  Councilors were presented with the opportunity to discuss ordinances at the 
10/7/13 meeting. 
 
To manage the workload of the reviewing ordinance, staff is recommending multiple 
steps be followed: 
 

1. Issues like misspellings or grammatical errors be identified and resolved outside 
of the Council meeting.  Councilors can forward their markups to the City 
Recorder.  

2. Councilors identify which policies need substantial revisions, and those policies 
be set aside for further discussion.   

3. At the October 21, 2014 meeting, policies which are not earmarked for further 
discussion be approved by Council as written, subject to minor grammatical and 
spelling revisions. 

4. Council review 3-4 policies per meeting until all outstanding policy issues are 
discussed.  The review will occur in the order of the policy numbers. 

 
Fiscal Impact:   Review and adoption of the policies has no direct fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I moved to approve all policies except those identified for further 
discussion. 
 
Attachment – None. These draft policy packets were distributed at the 9/16/13 meeting 
and can be reviewed from the City Council Packet posted on-line at 
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Rep
ort_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf 
 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 20 of 32

http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf
http://www.northplains.org/images/stories/media/Committees/City_Council/Agenda_Report_Documents/2013/091613%20COUNCIL%20PACKET.pdf


___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 21 of 32

mreh
Typewritten Text
Auto Pay Register

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 8G



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 22 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 23 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 24 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 25 of 32

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text

mreh
Typewritten Text
Manual Check Register

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 8G



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 26 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 27 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 28 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 29 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 30 of 32



___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 31 of 32



November 2013 Council Calendar 
 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council Tuesday 7:00 p.m. 11/04 

Veteran’s Day (City Offices and Library closed)  11/11 

Washington County Coordinating 
Committee (WCCC) Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 11/11 

Planning Commission Kindel  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 11/13 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development: Policy 
Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 11/14 

Senior Center Holiday Bazaar   North Plains Senior Center 
9:00-3:00  11/16 

City Council 7:00 p.m. 11/18 

Library Board Lenahan  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 11/20 

Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC) Hatcher Newton 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 11/27 

Parks Board   4th Wednesday @ 6:30 p.m. 11/27 

Thanksgiving Holiday (City Offices and Library closed)  11/28 

Thanksgiving Holiday (City Offices and Library closed)  11/29 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Lenahan   

Northwest Oregon Area 
Commission on Transportation 
(NWACT) 

Lenahan DeBry   

 

Agenda Item: 12B 

___________________________________ 
City Council Packet 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Page 32 of 32


	4A 102113 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 100713 Minutes
	8A Memo Holiday Jingle and Elephant Garlic Festival waiving JMCH fees
	8B Memo NPCGarden Club and waiver of Jessie Mays fees
	8B North Plains Garden Club Insurance Form
	8C Memo Crab Feed Waiving fees
	8D Memo Street Naming
	8D Policy 150 street names
	8E Memo Fee in Lieu
	8E Resolution Number 1804 Suspension of Fee In Lieu
	8F Memo Progress on draft City Policies
	8G September 2013 Auto Pay Check Register
	8G September 2013 Manual Check Register
	12B November 2013 Council Calendar



